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ORDINANCE NO.

ORDINANCE TO APPROVE A ZONING MAP AMENDMENT, TO AUTHORIZE A
CHANGE IN ZONING DISTRICT CLASSIFICATION FOR FOUR (4) PARCELS OF LAND
FROM THEIR PRESENT ZONING DISTRICT OF RE-RESIDENTIAL ESTATE TO A-
AGRICULTURAL FOR PROPERTIES IDENTIFIED AS 13582, 0, 13524 AND 13506 OLD
HIGHWAY 67

WHEREAS, the Biloxi Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on May 7, 2026,
to hear the application of David & Glenda Shackelford & John & Brandy Hamilton, Case No, 26~
027-PC, to consider an application for a Zoning Map Amendment for properties identified as
13582, 0, 13524 and 13506 Old Highway 67; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission members were apprised of the particulars of this
case, being made cognizant of the fact that David & Glenda Shackelford & John & Brandy
Hamilton (owners) have submitted a Zoning Map Amendment, to authorize a change in zoning
district classification for four (4) parcels of land measuring approximately 15.8 acres (more or less)
in size, from their present zoning district classification of RE-Residential Estate to A-
Agricultural, identified as 13582, 0, 13524 and 13506 Old Highway 67 (Tax Parcel Nos.1207K-
01-001.000, 1207K-01-001.001, 1207K-01-002.000, and 1207K-01-003.000); and

WHEREAS, on May 7, 2026, the Biloxi Planning Commission, after discussion and
careful consideration of the particulars of this case, voted unanimously (12-0) to recommend
approval of this Zoning Map Amendment, having determined that a mistake existed in the zoning
designation and noting that this action would bring the properties into compliance with the existing
use, namely animal husbandry, which has existed since prior to annexation; and

WHEREAS, the Biloxi City Council, after consideration of all facts presented, hereby

adopts the report and findings of the Biloxi Planning Commission, and in so doing, determines that



approval of the Zoning Map Amendment is appropriate for the properties as related in Case No.
26-027-PC and identified as 13582, 0, 13524 and 13506 Old Highway 67,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BILOXI, MISSISSIPP], THAT AS PER THE FINDINGS OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION,
AND BASED UPON THOSE DETERMINATIONS, THAT THE FOLLOWING SHALL BE
AUTHORIZED:

Section 1. That the boundaries of the Geographical Information System Format Zoning
District Map of the City of Biloxi, Mississippi, be hereby further amended by a change in zoning
district classification from RE-Residential Estate to A-Agricultural, for the properties identified
as 13582, 0, 13524 and 13506 Old Highway 67 (re: Tax Parcel No. Tax Parcel No. 1207K-01-

001.000, 1207K-01-001.001, 1207K-01-002.000, and 1207K-01-003.000), more fully described

as follows:

1207K-01-001.000

2.2 ac(c) com at ne corner of sec 35-6-10w 200 fi to branch crossing w 525.4 fi to pob s
31dge 3401 fi s 53 dg w 224.3 fi to e mar of old Hwy 67 n 31 dg w 203.9 ft n 34 dg
wl76.5 ft n 35 dg w 123.8 ft e 282.9ft to pob part of ne 1/4 of ne 1/4 of sec 35-6-10
1207K-01-001.001

4.7 ac(c) beg 200 ft w of ne cor of sec 35-6-10 w 525.4 ft s 31 dg e 340.1 ft s 53 dg w
224.3 fi to e mar of old Hwy 67 s 31 dg e 179.4 ft along Hwy to branch nely following
meandering of branch fo pob part of ne 1/4 of ne 1/4 of sec 35-6-10

1207K-01-002.000

3.8 ac(c) beg at ne cor sec 35 s 620 fi s 82 dgs w 550 fi m/l to e mar of old hwy 67 nwly
along Hwy 99.1 ft fo center of pond nely 720 fi to a pt 200 fi w of pob e 200 ft to pob in ne
1/4 of ne 1/4 of sec 35-6-10

1207K-01-003.000

3.1 ac (c) com mv cor sec 36-6-10 e 488 ft s 595 ft s 82 dg w 201 fi to beg s 82 dg w 294
Jiw to line between sec 35/36-6-10 contd s 82 dg w 565 fi to e r/w Hwy 67 s 31 dge 182.1
ft n 83 dg e 470 ft to line between sec 35/36-6-10 n 83 dg e 335 fin 09dgw 172.4 ft to
pob sec 35/36-6-10,

and further described as land situated to the North of Allegheny Drive, South of Fayard Road,

East of and fronting upon Old Hwy 67, and West of Roxanne Way.



SECTION 2. Upon unanimous vote of the members of the City Council, this ordinance
shall be in full force and effect from and after passage, because it serves the public peace, health
and safety of the citizens of Biloxi, and good cause exists for same. If not a unanimous vote this
Ordinance shall become effective as soon thereafter as is signed, certified, and as is otherwise

provided by law,



RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION CALLING FOR A PUBLIC HEARING WITH RESPECT TO A ZONING
MAP AMENDMENT, TO AUTHORIZE A CHANGE IN ZONING DISTRICT
CLASSIFICATION FOR FOUR (4) PARCELS OF LAND FROM THEIR PRESENT ZONING
DISTRICT OF RE-RESIDENTIAL ESTATE TO A-AGRICULTURAL FOR PROPERTIES
IDENTIFIED AS 13582, 0, 13524 AND 13506 OLD HIGHWAY 67

WHEREAS, the Biloxi Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on May 7, 2026,
to hear the application of David & Glenda Shackelford & John & Brandy Hamilton, Case No. 26-
027-PC, to consider an application for a Zoning Map Amendment for properties identified as
13582, 0, 13524 and 13506 Old Highway 67; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission members were apprised of the particulars of this
case, being made cognizant of the fact that David & Glenda Shackelford & John & Brandy
Hamilton (owners) have submitted a Zoning Map Amendment, to authorize a change in zoning
district classification for four (4) parcels of land measuring approximately 15.8 acres (more or less)
in size, from their present zoning district classification of RE-Residential Estate to A-
Agricultural, identified as 13582, 0, 13524 and 13506 Old Highway 67 (Tax Parcel Nos.1207K-
01-001.000, 1207K-01-001.001, 1207K-01-002.000, and 1207K-01-003.000); and

WHEREAS, on May 7, 2026, the Biloxi Planning Commission, after discussion and
careful consideration of the particulars of this case, voted unanimously (12-0) to recommend
approval of this Zoning Map Amendment, having determined that a mistake existed in the zoning
designation and noting that this action would bring the properties into compliance with the existing
use, namely animal husbandry, which has existed since prior to annexation; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Biloxi, Mississippi, having given the Planning
Commission's recommendation full consideration, has determined that this is a matter of general

public concern, and being so, it is in the best interest of the community to hold a public hearing on



this matter before the City Council.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF BILOXI, MISSISSIPPI, will conduct a public hearing in reference to Case No. 26-
027-PC, David & Glenda Shackelford & John & Brandy Hamilton, relative to a Zoning Map
Amendment for the property sites presently identified as 13582, 0, 13524 and 13506 Old
Highway 67, on a date to be set and in accordance with all requirements as prescribed by the City of

Biloxi Land Development Ordinance governing the conduct of public hearings.

...............................................................................................................................................................



RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION TO DENY THE REQUEST FOR A ZONING MAP AMENDMENT, TO
AUTHORIZE A CHANGE IN ZONING DISTRICT CLASSIFICATION FOR FOUR (4)
PARCELS OF LAND FROM THEIR PRESENT ZONING DISTRICT OF RE-
RESIDENTIAL ESTATE TO A-AGRICULTURAL FOR PROPERTIES IDENTIFIED AS
13582, 0, 13524 AND 13506 OLD HIGHWAY 67

WHEREAS, the Biloxi Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on May 7, 2026,
to hear the application of David & Glenda Shackelford & John & Brandy Hamilton, Case No. 26-
027-PC, to consider an application for a Zoning Map Amendment for properties identified as
13582, 0, 13524 and 13506 Otid Highway 67; and |

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission members were apprised of the particulars of this
case, being made cognizant of the fact that David & Glenda Shackelford & John & Brandy
Hamilton (owners) have submitted a Zoning Map Amendment, to authorize a change in zoning
district classification for four (4) parcels of land measuring approximately 15.8 acres (more or less)
in size, from their present zoning district classification of RE-Residential Estate to A-
Agricultural, identified as 13582, 0, 13524 and 13506 Old Highway 67 (Tax Parcel Nos.1207K-
01-001.000, 1207K-01-001.001, 1207K-01-002.000, and 1207K-01-003.000); and

WHEREAS, on May 7, 2026, the Biloxi Planning Commission, after discussion and
careful consideration of the particulars of this case, voted unanimously (12-0) to recommend
approval of this Zoning Map Amendment, having determined that a mistake existed in the zoning
designation and noting that this action would bring the properties into compliance with the existing
use, namely animal husbandry, which has existed since prior to annexation; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF BILOXI, MISSISSIPPI, that having given the Planning Commission's

recommendation full consideration, the Biloxi City Council hereby rejects said recommendation and

hereby denies the requested Zoning Map Amendment, for the properties identified as 13582, 0,



13524 and 13506 Old Highway 67 as related in Case No. 26-027-PC, David & Glenda

Shackelford & John & Brandy Hamilton, based upon a determination that







Scheduled for David & Glenda Shackeiford
May 7, 2026 John & Brandy Hamilton
PC Meeting Case No. 26-027-PC
Zoning Map Amendment
REto A
Biloki
ahgedlﬁw
Planning Commission
Case Fact Sheet
Case No.: 26-027-PC

Name of Owners:

Address of Properties:

Tax Parcels/Ward:

David & Glenda Shackelford & John & Brandy Hamilton
13582, 0, 13524 and 13506 Old Highway 67
1207K-01-001.000, 1207K-01-001.001, 1207K-01-002.000,
and 1207K-01-003.000/Ward 7

Request:

Purpose of Request:

Size of Property:
Present Zoning:
Flood Zone:
Present Use:

Most Nearly
Bounded By (streets):

Adverse Influences:

Positive Influences:

Zoning Map Amendment

To consider an application for a Zoning Map Amendment,
to authorize a change in zoning district classification for four
(4) parcels of land measuring approximately 15.8 acres
(more or less) in size, from their present zoning district
classification of RE-Residential Estate to A-Agricultural.

15.8 acres (More or Less)
RE-Residential Estate
X

Vacant land, Single-Family Residences

To the North of Allegheny Drive, South of Fayard Road, East
of and fronting upon Old Hwy 67, and West of Roxanne

Way.

A Zoning Map Amendment should only be authorized when
conditions clearly suggest that a change in zoning is
warranted, that a change in the character of the neighborhood.
is evident, coupled with a community need to address this
change, and that the change proposed is consistent with uses
found upon adjacent or nearby properties.

This rezoning, if approved, would bring the accessory use into



David & Glenda Shackelford
John & Brandy Hamilton
Case No. 26-027-PC
Zoning Map Amendment
REto A

Page 2

Concerns stated:

Comments/
Recommendations:

compliance (i.e., animal husbandry).

The Planning Division Office has not received any letters or
other written communications relative to this case, as of April
30, 2026.

David & Glenda Shackefford & John & Brandy Hamilton
(owners) have submitted a Zoning Map Amendment, fo
authorize a change in zoning district classification for four (4)
parcels of land measuring approximately 15.8 acres (more or
less) in size, from their present zoning district classification
of RE-Residential Estate to A-Agricultural, identified as
13582, 0, 13524 and 13506 Old Highway 67 (Tax Parcel
Nos.1207K-01-001.000, 1207K-01-001.001,  1207K-01-
002.000, and 1207K-01-003.000).

The applicants explained that they would like to bring the
properties into compliance with the existing use (i.e., animal
husbandry) that has been in place since prior to annexation
by the City of Biloxi.

As with all requests for Zoning Map Amendment, discussion
points should focus on the merits or demerits of the Zoning
Map change proposed, considering the following criteria:

1) Consistency (or lack thereof) with the Comprehensive
Plan;

2) Compatibility with the present zoning and conforming
uses of nearby property and to the character of the
neighborhood;

3) Suitability of the property affected by the amendment
for uses permitted by the present district:

4) Suitability of the property affected by the amendment
for uses permitted by the proposed amendment;

9) Change in the character of the neighborhood and
established community need for uses permitted by the
district applicable to the property at the time of the
proposed amendment;

6) Availability of utilities and infrastructure sufficient to
address the impacts associated with the allowed uses
in the proposed district; and

7) Mistake in the original zoning



David & Glenda Shackeiford
John & Brandy Hamilton
Case No. 26-027-PC
Zoning Map Amendment
RE to A

Page 3

Options:

1.

Recommend approval of the requested Zoning Map Amendment for four parcels of
land from their current zoning classification of RE-Residential Estate to A-
Agricultural, based on a finding that the original zoning designation applied at the time
of annexation was made in error, and that the proposed A-Agricultural classification is
consistent with the existing character of the surrounding area.

Recommend denial of this Zoning Map Amendment, having determined that
insufficient evidence has been provided to establish that a mistake in original zoning
is of evidence, or a Change in the Character of the Neighborhood, coupled with no
valid Community need to warrant the level of zoning change, as proposed for the
parcels of land under consideration for zoning change.



To Be Completed by Owner/Appllcant

| Date:

Name of Rightfui Owner(s):,

Mkp%ra\ Jdm %Mu 'Hﬂfﬂl [}

6

Name of App!m} ant; (lf different than Owner)
’ am] “on

Ward Number ,7

RITIKI AT )3 [0

!I] EERENEN A RRINNE

071 el] DEZ!_ OO0
Mailing Address of Property Owner: oot N ,Address of Applicant (if different than
12200 Ok “mhutny(ﬂ Wi 2 9,0 Hfﬂhlwku (¢7
City: "oy ~ "~ [ City, B I 7
State: S L.Sfater MY 1
Zip: 20535 Zip: 712633
County Harrison County -ty eveiry
Telephone:(gd (47)- U7=58 Telephone: (aee) BB (0502

Property Size (please give in acres or by dimens

fon)

Present Zoning Classification: WKE

Is the property. i_ocated within an-AHRC: Distiict? Yes

—_No /47
il

Is this propett ﬂa_jHlstonc Landmark’? Ye: No, ~

Flood Zone(s) of Property: ! R North

Property is mos! nearly bounded by what streets? 'fo. T
R . O\vef%m Al

If property drrectiy fronts orls adjace one of the
streets above, please mdlcate with & R

REQUESTED ACTION BY ‘THJ:';EB,,L;_ANNI'NGEQO
required for each): v’

Text Amendment g ;
v must mciude

Zoning Map Amendment —

Zone cfassnflcat!on change in narratlve 145 +o ./‘1

Planned Development

Master Plan/Update

Preliminary Subdivision Review

Conditional Use

Public ROW Vacation

Street Name Change

Variance

Appeal

Tree Removal

Revised March 2025
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GENERAL INFORMATION, READ BEFORE EXECUTING. Attendance by the applicant(s) at
the public hearing is mandatory; however, the applicant may designate a representative to

attend the public hearing on his/her behalf, provided sald representative has been properly

designated to speak on the applicant's behalf either by written permission or oral
¢ Hearing. If a continuance is to be granted, the

designation by the applicant at the Publj

Biloxi City Council, you will have teh'(10) days tb‘é

I
B
e i

BN A
‘ Signatu&e\o‘f Rightful Owner Signature
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wE R My Comm SSIOAEXpires 08-'10.2029.4‘

Commission Number 269253 17 =™ .
" ' P e OIS SION Neimbe, 292
If someone other than the applicant needs to be\.en_ot_ifled_;conce_rnmg this Case; preases
i:’ ’YJ "i, ’; Jlf ; ;—J ; ] ,=.r AR o 7;:.. E R s

and address(es) below: PRI

NOTE: Please see attached instructions for details on documents required for

a_ complete application.

Revised March 2025
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TO BE COMPLETED BY APPLJCANT DATE 027/95 /30—9.(_0
Shaded Areas for Staff Orily -

MAP AMENDMENT - When the pUb]IC necessﬂy convenience, general welfare or
appropriate land use practices justify such action, and after the required review, public notice
and report by the Planning Commission, the City Council may undertake the necessary steps
to amend the Zoning District Map.

Please note that no appfication for the same parcel(s) requesting the same change may be
made more often than once every 24 monihs.

PLEASE ATTACH A SEPARATE STATEMENT OF SUPPORT - This parrative must set forth
proposed use and Justification for the change, utilizing criteria set forth in Section 23-2-4(B)(3)
of the Biloxi Code of Ordinances and Including all proposed and existing structures as well
as the uses planned for the site In question. Be specific as to development proposals, sale of
property, or other transactions/plans proposed or scheduled for preparation subject to this

rezoning request being granted approval.
Existing New

I am requesting a zoning change from this zone to this zone: _ Reqickarkigl (Eﬁ)ﬁamt‘oﬁua\ {, f}

If zoning change request includes more than one parcel, you must provide a wraparound legal ]

description.
Detailed Site Plan Attached (If no site plan is attached, this application is considered

incomplete and will not be accepted.)

v
Yes | No
1. Is the proposed map amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan? v~
Please explain:

This an s conaisteny Ny o awa pa it hadk nrﬂums!u
ey aoricu Hora W zoned and @ adinsent 90 WA

o iCUHXR L pngd Indostcin] zonteg 0=
2. Is the proposed map amendment compa'able with b?esent zoning and
conforming uses of nearby property and with the character of the v

neighborhood?
Please explain:

The mmamtﬂ,mle seele 4n rreot an ermor of rezonmyg
hoeoll dp he Previvs zone of Frgn(*qumLI =0 Yhet it mxy
Wm0 omplianee w¥hndrat zone -

Criteria:
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Criteria (continued)

3. Isthe property suitable for uses permitted in the present zoning district?
Please explain'

‘D!‘DD@(-N \'\os—-s Cch-hhuwd"\'n \r\mm r‘\rx. pe T 0}»:

for over 20\years .
4. Isthe property suitable for uses permitted in the proposed zoning district? 7

Please explain:

Theae propertiva,  and Yhe bomes and Sfnohires en Yhen—
A0ngaee_ 4re auiiable for aancviiratl zon o . Sveral

barfa _and _2Quipment Mversge baldinge,~have /wln /ﬁ'al%%

5. Has there been a change in the character of the neighborhotd?

Please explain: N, fordhe —pet 20 \opre no_Olfaestte

Charyes 40 Yne  nelnhlorhood hawe. ocoored, This

(& vyl el g oW DAdL. fpYhe trevios

zo0nmna o dacievlfiad.

6. Is there an established community need for uses permitted in the proposed e
zoning district?

Please explain._ {)r /ﬁmmi;mv‘t/ (& AMwirg andd heads 70
Koo 115 preen Spapea  gnal Forpteer /7%

wildlite. ang? l/)a#rw,\:%

/. Was there a mistake in the original zoning of the property? |

Please explain: [\ AW 1O+ beeny ably fo arve e2vaofy

when Shes oo e Woe  wode  or Why, pot Ghie

with allowed uses in the proposed district?

. (hy hos Nmnmdﬂ_ibmﬁ%_mm_;zﬁ&
Cor'an /] gmp 0 (M atpol _and Jdm’?ﬂ Aroas
8. Are utilities and-infrastructure sufficient to address the impactsassociated /

Please explain: Y¢s, nO il itve=s 0 indpetrochre.

O‘r\omaeaj Oxre. Deedent,

S!te PEan attached (p!ease c:rc[e) Yes*_.. | case No L -ALA AL T e




BRANDY HAMILTON 228.348,6262.CELL _
13582 QLD HIGHWAY 67 BRANDY.HAMILTONTI@GMAIL.COM
BILOXI, MS 39532 WWW.THELONELYJACKFARM.COM

City of Biloxi
PLANNING COMMISSION APPLICATION: MAP AMENDMENT
676 Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Blvd. Biloxi, Mississippi

NARRATIVE REQUEST

The property owners respectfully submit this request to the City of Biloxi
for the rezoning of their property from its current Residential Estate
designation back to Agricultural zoning. This request is made in good
faith and with the infention of restoring the property to compliance with
its longstanding and historical use.

The subject property has traditionaily been utilized for agricultural
purposes, consistent with its original zoning classification. The current
Residential Estate designation does not accurately reflect the functional
use of the land and has created limitations that place the property in a
‘position of nonconformity. By returning the zoning classification to
Agricuttural, the City would align the designation with the property’s
actual use, thereby resolving existing compliance concerns.

Rezoning the property to Agricultural would not introduce new or
incompatible uses fo the surrounding area. Rather, it would preserve the
established character of the land while supporting responsible land
stewardship. The agricultural use of the property contributes positively to
the local environment by maintaining open space, supporting small-scale
food production, and promoting sustainable practices.

The property owners are committed to maintaining the land in a manner
that is respectful of the neighboring properties, this rezoning request
represents a practical and reasonable solution that benefits both the
property owners and the community by bringing the property back into
.compliance with its intended and historical use.

Best regards,

Brandy J. Hamilton; r'operfy owner and applicant
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BILOXI PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
MAY 7, 2026
COMMIMITY DEVELORMENT,

DR. MARTIN LUTHER KING JR. MUNICIPAL BUILDING,
676 LR. MARTIN LUTHER KING JR. BOULEVARD,
BILOXI, MISSISSIPPI,

BEGINNING AT 2:00 P.M.

PLANNING OQt#ISSION MEMBERS PRESENT:

Charlie Dellenger, Chairman
Ronnie Bogard
Kyle Carron
Steve Delahousey
Jece King

CGary Lechner
August Parker
Jimmy Poulos
Shante' Shaw
John Snow

David Stanovich
tichael Todaro

ALSO PRESENT:
Jerry Creel, Director of Community Cevelopment
Felicia Serpas, Senior Planner

Caryle Lena, Planner I
Dr., Paul Tisdale, Councilman Ward 5

REPORTED BY

Melissa Burdine-Rodolfich
Simpson Burdine & Migues

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228 388 3130

C-O-N-T-E-N-T-8
CONTINUED PUBLIC HEARING(S): PAGE:
(None)
NEW PUBLIC HEARING(S) :

26-028-FC 19
TREE HEARINGS:
TR-26-002 29

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228 388 3130
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CHAIRMAN DELLENGER:

If we can, we'll call the Planning
Commission meeting to order.

We can record the menbers present:

Mr. Lechner, Mr. Parker, Mr. Tedaro, Ms. Shaw,
Mr. Stanovich, Mr. Bogard, Mr. Delahousey,

Mr. Carron, Mr, King, Mr. Snow, Mr. Poulos; and
myself, Mr. Dellenger.

We have Felicia Serpas, Senior Planner;
Jerry Creel, Director of Community Development;
Caryle Lena, Planner; Melissa Rodolfich, Court
Reporter; and Dr., Paul Tisdale, Councilman Ward 5.

Steve, if you will, please, lead us in a
moment of player, please.

MR. CELRHCUSEY:

Sure. I'm going to change it up a
little bit today, Today's prayer is going to
focus more on issues closer to home,

(Moment of prayer.)

CHAIRMAN CELLENGER:

Please stand for the Pledge. Ms. Shaw,
if you'd lead us in the Pledge.

(Pledge of Allegiance.)

CHAIRMAN DELLENGER:

I would like to welccme everybody here

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388.3130

4

to the Planning Commission meeting teday. If you
desire to speak for one of the hearings, if you
can, please come up, state your name and address
for the record, and let us knouw why you're here to
speak and whether it's for or against the case.

And please, if you could, silence all
your cell phones so we don't have those going off
in the middle of the meeting as well.

If everyone has had a moment to review
the Planning Commission minutes frem the last
meeting, if we could have a motion and a second to
approve those.

IMR. DELRHOUSEY:

Move to approve.
MR. BOGARD:

Second.
CHAIRMAN DELLENGER:

Move to approve by Mr. Delahousey;
second by Mr. Bogard.

All those in favor, please state by
saying "aye."

(Unanimous vote.)

CHAIRMAN CELLENGER:
Any opposed?
(None opposed.)

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228,388 3130
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CHATRMAN CELLENGER:

Motion carries.

Jerry, do we have any committee reports?
MR. CREEL:

We do. Mr. Chairman and menbers of the
Commission, over the past two weeks, the
department has issued 214 building permits, We
had a total construction valuaticn of $10,300,000.

We have collected right at $43,000 in
permit fees. We issued licenses for 33 new
businesses; 13 of those were for peddlers. We
also renewed 15 business licenses.

And we issued 34 certificates of
occupancy. Three of those were for short-term
rental,

Of the new permits issued, one was for
the Chick-fil-A at 2356 Pass Road. We also issued
the electrical permit for the Chick-fil-A. The
building was right at $1.6 million and the
electrical was a quarter of a million dollars,

Also, a renovation permit for the
Walmart Neighborhood Market at 1820 Popp's Ferry
Road and one for a new multi-family structure at
$2 million., That was at 1040 Park Circle. That's

an apartment building. We also issued permits for

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228 388 3130

14 new single-family houses.
CHATRMAN CELLENGER:

Thank you, Jerry.

We do not have any continued public
hearings.

New public hearings: We have a case
Nurber _6-027-PC David and Glenda Shackelford and
John and Brandy Hamilton, a request for a zoning
map amendrent to authorize a change in zoning
district classification for four parcels of land
measuring approximately 15.8 acres, more or less,
in size from their present zoning classification
of RE, residential estate to A, Agriculture,
identified as 13582, 0, 13524, and 13506 Old
Highway 67. And there is four separate parcel
nurbers listed there as well. This was advertised
April 17th and April 24th and May lst.

Felicia, if you can, please show the
video.
MS. SERPAS:

(Video played.)

There's another video. Cne second.

(Video played.)

Okay.
CHAIRMAN DELLENGER:
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Thank you.

Are the Shackelfords or the Hamiltons
here?

MS, HAMILTCN:

Hamilton.
CHATRMAN DELLENGER:

Okay. Ms. Hamilton, if you could,
please, come up and tell us what you're looking to
try to do and all that and state your name and
address for the record, please.

MS. HAMILTCN:

Okay. I'm Brandy Hamilton. I'm
representing myself and my husband at 13582 0Old
Highway 67, and my parents, David and Glenda
Shackelford, at 13524 and 13506.

Basically, as we -- back in 2003, my
parents bought the 13582 at -- and it was zoned
agricultural then. They had animals then, so did
the neighbors.

That was -- the Robinscns used to live
there, And when they moved next door, I bought
this house, which is 13582, from them and they
moved to 13524 and it's -- at some point, we've
not quite been able to pinpoint exactly when it

happened, but it changed from Agricultural to
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Residential Estate, And we have always had
different animals out there. About 18 years ago,
we rescued a donkey named AJ and he's kind of
become the mascot of our community.

CHAIRMAN DELLENGER:

1 was going to ask you where the donkey
was.,
bS. HAMILTON:

Yeah. He's out there somewhere.
Probably hanging out by the pond. There's
about -- you know, there's three ponds over there.
They feed off of the larger pond, and we fish off
the back two. But they -- it's kind of always
been agricultural and the back, it is industrial.
Bnd the -- further back past the ponds, that's
where they had the pig barns and everything, so,
historically, we're showing that it has always
been agricultural.

Bnd like I said, we haven't been able to
pinpoint exactly when that was changed, but to ke
in cempliance and to be able to keep our lovable
AJ, we would like to switch that back to
agricultural.

And like I said in the narrative

request, you know, we want to bring the property
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back into econpliance inta its intended apd
historical usae,
CHAIRMAN CELLENGER:

I noticed -- and T pass by the property
a lot. It lcocks like in the front left portion
that's fenced in, it used to be, I guess, it's
3 —— for lack of a better word, a large garden.
S, HEMILTCH:

Jh-huh.

CHAIRMAN [ELLERGER:

Lo y'all still plan on planting things
in there or expanding that at all?
HS. HRMTLTOM:

Not expanding. Most of the pastures are
all used for any kind of animals. Cur main steady
animal that we have is the donkey, It seems to be
a2 sanctuary for all of the lost animals in our
neighorhood, leat horses, other donkeys. Things
just always seem to care in, so we hold them for a
little bit,

Put that side that's next to cur house,
that 1s where we do most of the gardening and that
will be an orchard at sore golnt, but, you know,
small orchard for our family. It's family use,

It's not -~ you know, w0 're not having a you-pick
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or anything out that there,
MR, LELAHOSEY:

Mr. Creel, did this happen -- this
change happsn when the (0O was revised?
MR, CREEL:

we did it in 2010, It's corplicated, I
will have to explain it after we hear from the
COMTANtS .

CHALRMAN DELIENGER:

foes anybody have any questicns?
MR, CARRON:

Tes. Just a question., It's zoned
irdustrial behind your property. Is that a big
issue?
biS, HAMILTON:

No. That's actually -- my parents owm
that too.

MR, CARRON:

Okay. Thank you very wuch.
MR, STANOVICH:

Gther than the donkey, is there any
other animals?

MS. HAMILTON:
I've got a few goats out there that are

icoking for hares, so if you know of anybody, we
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have -~ and I have chickens, s0 we «all our litrle
tarm the Lonely Jack Farm becapse the donkey
stays, obut all the animals kind of come and qo and
he kind of gets a iittle lonely. So we try to
keep a buddy over there for him, kut for the most
part, he's kind of ocur staple,

CHATRMAN [DELLENGER:

Are there any other questions?

Okay, There being no further gquestions,
thank you,

S, HEMTLTON:

Thank you.
CHATRMAN CELIENGER:

Is5 there anyore in the audience to speak
in favor of the request? Anyone to speak in
favor?

(Mo response. )

CHATRMON DELLFHGER:

Is there anyone to speax in cpposition?
o one to speak in oppositlon,

Than, wa'll consider that hearing

closed.

MR, CREEL:

QOkay., This is a little conplicated.
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I'm geing to explain it Loth ways.

This propsrty has always been used as a
farm. It's 15,9 acres. It was zoned Agricultuval
when it was in the county, Woen we annexed it, it
came in 3s Bgricultural, but when the last LLO was
done, for socwe reason, it fransferred over to RE.

tow, you're allowed to have animals in
both Bgricultural and RE, but there is a statement
in the transitional standards and the transirional
standards are in the LIO where it says that, you
know, properties coming in with the zoning would
transfer over to this other type of zoning.

This property should have remained
Agriculrural, but for scme reascn, again, it was
changed to RE.

The transitional ordinance says that we
can't take a pilece of property that was zoned
scrething else and change the coning back te
Aariculcural, Tt makes -- it's a feootnote, but it
rakes a statament in there that no additional
property shall ke rezoned to Rgriculzural,

80 on the one hand, we can take the
posttion that, well, this was a mistake in the
original zoning and it pever should have been

changed and needs to remaln Bgricultural.
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Tne other side of this is that as RE, as
RE zoning, BE zoning does allow animals, Animal
hushandry is what it's called. You can have two
per three acres of property that you have, which
m2ans that she could have up to 10 cattle or
harses or goats, whatever it happens to be, They
can have 10 with the 15 acres that thsy've got,
but aniral husbandry is a conditional use in RE
zoning.

by recommendation would be that we would
not change the zoning back to Ayricultural, but
that we leave it RE. Let us go back and
re-advertise for a conditional use and that would
allow them to do what they're going to do. We
would advertise it. No fee to you. It would just
take a little while longer ta de.

And with the Agricultural zoning, you
can have -- bear with m2 just a minute. It's
allowed one horse or one animal for every acre of
land, so bthey would be allowed to have 15 in the
agricultural zoning.

In the RE zoning, thay would be allowed
to have a mazimum of 10, That would be really the
only difference baetwean the two,

But [ think the cleanast way to do this
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would be for us to advertise it as conditicnal use
under the RE zoning since it was changed, I'11
leave the decision vp to y'all. You can ask ma
questions. [ wWill try to answer them as best I
can,

MR, TOCARO:

That feotnote about heing able to go
back to the original zoning, even thoush they
didn't petition or like you said, prchably a
mistake, how can w2 not -~ override that footnote?
#R. CREEL:

Well, you can take the position -- if
y'all take the position that we think that this
was changed -- because nothing about the preperty
has charnged,

MR, TODBRO:

It was a mistare.
MR, CREEL:

It's the same, This is the way that i
used to drive to and from Hattiesburg., 1 would
ceme by here 23 years ago and it's always hean
uged as a farm. 3o y'all can take the position
that we think that when it was changed with the
LEC change that it was done in error and you can

change it back, 5And we'll go from there and, you
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know, wa'll prebably get some criticism about ch,
they're not following the ordinance again and
averything elss, bot that is cne of the state law
refedies for a change in zoning, is that there was
a mistake in the zoning., We just hasically
corrected that mistake,
CHAIRMAN CELIENGER:

But can we legally do that?
MR. CREEL:

Well, that's cne of the --
HR, CARRON:

I've got this rignt here, 1if you want

LR, CREEL:

Okay.
M8, HAMILTON:

May I ask a question or 1s that -~
CHATRMBN LELLENGER:

Hold on.

MR. CREEL:

Yeah, This is just another place where
it says no additional land is to ke zonsd A-1 or
Roriculfural and it =ays that in a footnote in the
tranziticnal table as wall, so ——

FR. CARROH:

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.338.3130

Can I ask M3, Hamilton a question? How
rany anirmals are you looking to go up to?
MS. HAMILTON:

Well, I have three very big, growing
Doys and so 1 was going to add more chickens to
tesd them.

HR. CREEL:

wWell, the chickens are handled
diffarently,
M3, HREMILTCM:

The chickens are. Okay.
MR. CREEL:

This has to do with anirals,
3 HAMILTOMN:

Yeah. It really just is tne goats on
how they keep the fence line down.
MA. CREEL:

This would include goats, sheep, cattle
and horses or donksys, you know, That's what
would ke involwed in this.

MR, CARRON:

But what I'm lcoking for is to see if
they're ¢golng to excead that —— what is that, 107
MR. CREEL:

Tan.
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CHAIRMAN DELLENGER:

Ten to fifteen is what you get. You get
five extra ones being agricultural.
MS. HERMILTON:

We shouldn't, but I mean, it -- that's
kind of cutting it close with the pasture, with
the -- everything,

FR. LELAKOUSEY:

Ms. Hamilton -- I'm sorry, Kyle. Were
you finished?
MR. CARRONM:

Well, what I was alluding to, I mean, if
you're going to stay under 10, then it -- it would
kind of be easier for us, T believe, if we say
there was a mistake in the original zoning.

MR. CELAHOUSEY:
Yeah.
MR, KING:

I agree with that.
MR. DELRHOUSEY:

After hearing basically what options are
available, the two reredies, both of them would
probably satisfy your needs. Would you be more
inclined for it to go back to Agricultural like it

was or for it to remain RE under -- and have a
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hearing for conditional use?
MS. HAMILTON:

I would like it to be back to
Agricultural. I think it would help protect that
land.

MR, CELAHOUSEY:

I would like to make a motion that we --
understanding that it may be challenged, but I
would like to make a motion that we change it back
to Agricultural with the understanding that it's
our opinion that it was a mistake.

MR. TCLARO:

I second that,
M3. LENA:

So you're making a motion to approve?
MR. LCELAHOUSEY:

Approve, yes.

CHAIRMAN DELLENGER:

We have a motion on the flcor by
Mr. [elahousey to approve; seconded by Mr. Tedaro.

Is there any discussion?

(Ho response.)

CHAIRMAN CELLENGER:
There being no further discussion, all

vote by please raising your hand. Mr. Lechner,
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Mr. Parker, Mr. Todaro, Ms. Shaw, Mr. Bocgard,
Mr. Delahousey, Mr. Carron, Mr. King, Mr. Snow,
Mr. Poulos; and myself, Mr. Dellenger.

All right. Let the record show that
carries.
CHATIRMAN DELLENGER:

BEny against? Any abstains?
MR. STANOVICH:

No. I voted yes.
CHAIRMAN CELLENGER:

Oh, you did? I'm sorry. I didn't see
your hand. Mr. Stanovich is a ves.

Let the record show that carries.
MR, TCDARO:

Was it -- unanimous, right?
CHAIRMEN CELLENGER:

Unanimous.

Thank you.
MS, HRMILTCN:

Thank you.
CHAIRMAN DELLENGER:

The next public hearing w

Nurber 26-028-PC Erwin Castillo, a request for a

conditional use to authorize an existing

single-family residence situated upon a parcel of
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land measuring approximately one acre, more or
less, to be utilized as a short-term rental for a
property located within an NB, Neighbornood
Business zone, identified as 11554 Cedsar Lake
Road, Tax Parcel Hurber 1208I-01-006.000. This
was advertised on 4/24 and 5/1. If we could
please see the video.
MS. SERPAS:

(Video played.)

Okay.
CHATRMAN DELLENGER:

Thank you.

Is Mr, Castillo here?

Martha Ramos.
CHAIRMAN CELLENGER:

Yes. If you can, care up, please. Let
us know what you're planning to try to do and how
you're going to do that.

MS. RAMOS:

Okay. So first, hi, everyone. I'm
Ms. Martha Ramos and my husband, Erwin Castillo.

So basically what we're trying to do is
to have the conditional use to legally have our

Airbnb or short-term rental on the second
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